
 

 
 

Notice of meeting of  
 

Staffing Matters & Urgency Committee 
 
To: Councillors Steve Galloway (Chair), Gillies, Jamieson-

Ball, Potter and Scott 
 

Date: Wednesday, 21 May 2008 
 

Time: 5.30 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall, York 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

1. Declarations of Interest   
 

At this point, members are asked to declare any personal or 
prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this agenda. 
 

2. Exclusion of Press and Public   
 

To consider the exclusion of the press and public from the meeting 
during consideration of the following: 
  
Annexes 1 and 2 to Agenda Item 5 (Community Stadium) on the 
grounds that it contains information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of particular persons.  This information is classed 
as exempt under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to Section 100A of 
the Local Government Act 1972 (as revised by The Local 
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006). 
 

3. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 8) 
 

To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting of the Staffing 
Matters and Urgency Committee held on 9 May 2008. 
 



 

4. Public Participation   
 

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have 
registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or 
an issue within the Committee’s remit can do so.  The deadline for 
registering is Monday 20 May 2008, at 5.00 pm. 
 

5. Community Stadium  (Pages 9 - 24) 
 

This report sets out a proposed way forward towards delivering a 
Community Stadium for York.  It also suggests further steps that 
the Council could take in order to help bring about a community 
stadium and to support York City Football Club in the period of 
transition from their current stadium to the new one. 
 

6. Any Other Matters which the Chair decides are urgent under 
the Local Government Act 1972.   
 

Democracy Officer:  
 
Name: Simon Copley 
Contact details: 

• Telephone – (01904) 551078 

• E-mail – simon.copley@york.gov.uk 
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

• Registering to speak 

• Business of the meeting 

• Any special arrangements 

• Copies of reports 
 
Contact details are set out above.  

 
 



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 

If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact 
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00 
pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on 
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak 
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer. 
A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or 
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing 
online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the 
full agenda are available from Democratic Services.  Contact the Democracy 
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the 
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the 
agenda requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  The meeting 
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing 
loop.  We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically 
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take 
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours 
for Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign 
language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact the Democracy Officer 
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the 
meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in another 
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing 
sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this 
service. 

 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



 
Holding the Executive to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (38 out of 47).  
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a 
published Executive (or Executive Member Advisory Panel (EMAP)) agenda. 
The Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date 
and will set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny 
Management Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following 
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the 
Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 

• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as 
necessary; and 

• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 
 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to 
which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for 
the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 

Page 2



City of York Council Committee Minutes

MEETING STAFFING MATTERS & URGENCY COMMITTEE 

DATE 9 MAY 2008 

PRESENT COUNCILLORS STEVE GALLOWAY (CHAIR), 
GILLIES, JAMIESON-BALL, POTTER AND SCOTT 

33. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members were invited to declare at this point in the meeting any personal 
or prejudicial interests they might have in the business on the agenda.   

Cllr Scott declared a personal, non prejudicial interest in agenda item 7 
(Equal Pay Settlements), as an employment lawyer specialising in equal 
pay claims.  He noted that he had not been involved in any equal pay 
claims in relation to employees of this Council. 

34. MINUTES  

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the Staffing Matters and Urgency 
Committee meeting held on 18 April 2008 be approved and 
signed by the Chair as a correct record. 

35. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at the 
meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 

36. CHIEF OFFICER RECRUITMENT PROTOCOL  

Members considered a report which sought formal approval to establish a 
Chief Officer Recruitment Protocol, in order to bring consistency to the 
Council’s procedures for recruiting Chief Officers. 

A draft Protocol, developed by the Head of HR Services in consultation 
with the Chief Executive, was attached as Annex 1 to the report.  Members 
were invited to approve and / or suggest amendments to the draft.   

It was noted that agreement of a Protocol would enable the financial 
decisions around the use of recruitment consultants to be made on a case 
by case basis, thus helping to ensure value for money.  The Protocol would 
be advisory in nature and would not affect mandatory legal requirements in 
respect of recruitment. 

RESOLVED: That the proposed Chief Officer Recruitment Protocol at 
Annex 1 to the report be approved.1 

Agenda Item 3Page 3



REASON: To ensure consistency of approach and value for money. 

Action Required  
1. Implement Recruitment Protocol.   KS  

37. DIRECTORATE REORGANISATION  

Members considered a report which outlined the case for a reorganisation 
of responsibilities amongst the Council’s Directorates.  It also presented 
short-term proposals for managing over the summer, given the number of 
key Chief Officer recruitment processes currently pending.

In summary, the proposals involved: 

• Moving Highways, CCTV and parking operational responsibilities 
from City Strategy to Neighbourhood Services 

• Moving Leisure grounds maintenance from Leisure, Culture and 
Children’s Services to Neighbourhood Services 

• Moving Planning, Performance and Improvement from the Chief 
Executive’s Directorate to Resources 

• Moving Payroll to Human Resources (HR) and moving Property 
from Resources to the Chief Executive’s Directorate 

• Putting in place interim arrangements during the appointment of the 
new Director of Resources, Head of HR and Head of Audit and Risk 
Management, including those set out in item 6 on this agenda 
(Minute 38 refers). 

Members commented that the proposals were logical and would achieve 
the savings required.  However, Cllrs Scott and Potter felt that the 
proposed re-organisation did not go far enough and abstained from the 
vote on that basis. 

RESOLVED: That the ‘direction of travel’ for the organisation, as set out in 
the report, be approved.1 

REASON: In order to deliver the Council’s corporate objectives better 
and more effectively and to contribute to budget savings. 

Action Required  
1. Implement the agreed changes and amend the 
Constitution accordingly.   

SC  

38. HEAD OF FINANCIAL SERVICES, SECTION 151 OFFICER AND 

PROPER OFFICER FOR THE REGISTER OFFICE  

Members considered a report which sought approval to re-allocate 
responsibilities currently held by the Director of Resources and to appoint 
the current temporary Head of Financial Services on a permanent basis. 

Page 4



The responsibilities to be transferred were the Section 151 role and the 
role of Proper Officer for the Register Office.  The Proper Officer role had 
been transferred to the Director of Resources when the Head of Public 
Services left the Council last December.  In view of the decision to reduce 
the scope of the Director of Resources post (Minute 37 refers), it was 
proposed that this role now be transferred to the Assistant Director of 
Neighbourhoods and Community Safety, Andy Hudson.  The Section 151 
responsibilities were currently performed by the Director of Resources and 
the Head of Audit and Risk Management, both of whom were leaving the 
Council in June 2008.  It was proposed to transfer Section 151 and 
pensions responsibilities to the Head of Financial Services until a new 
Director of Resources had been appointed and to designate the Audit and 
Fraud Manager, Max Thomas, as Chief Internal Auditor until the 
appointment of a new Head of Audit and Risk Management. 

With regard to the Head of Financial Services post, Members were asked 
to consider confirming the current temporary holder of this post, Sian 
Hanson, as the permanent Head of Financial Services.  In discussing this 
proposal, Members stressed that they had no issues regarding the 
competency of the current post holder.  However, some Members felt that 
the new Director should have some input into the decision.  Clllr Gillies 
therefore moved, and Cllr Scott seconded, a proposal to delegate the 
decision to confirm the permanent appointment to the new Director of 
Resources.  On being put to the vote, this alternative proposal was 
declared carried, with three Members voting in favour.

RESOLVED: (i) That the Register Office be transferred to 
Neighbourhood Services.1 

 (ii) That Andy Hudson be appointed as the Proper Officer 
for the Register Office, subject to there being no impact on 
grade as a result of this change.2 

 (iii) That Sian Hansom, temporary Head of Financial 
Services, be appointed as the Council’s Section 151 Officer 
and as officer responsible for all pensions issues currently 
delegated to the Director of Resources, until a new Director 
of Resources starts in post.3 

 (iv) That the decision whether to appoint Sian Hansom 
permanently to the Head of Financial Services post be 
delegated to the new Director of Resources.4 

 (v) That Max Thomas be appointed as Acting Chief 
Internal Auditor.5 

REASON: In order to ensure that adequate and timely measures are put 
in place to cover the Council’s statutory responsibilities and 
to limit risks during this period of staff changes. 

Action Required  
1. Implement the transfer, including making any necessary 
changes to the Constitition.  

SA  

Page 5



2. Make the appointment.  
3. Make the appointment and transfer responsibilities on a 
temporary basis.  
4. Seek a decision from the new Director of Resources.  
5. Make the appointment, on a temporary basis.   

SA  
SA  

SA  
SA  

39. EQUAL PAY SETTLEMENTS  

Members considered a report which sought formal approval for 
agreements that had been reached with four firms of solicitors acting for 
clients who had submitted equal pay claims against the Council. 

In total, 235 equal pay cases had been submitted to employment tribunal 
and a date had been set for a two week hearing commencing on 21 April 
2008.  In view of the expense associated with defending the Council’s case 
and the risk and reputational issues involved, a decision had been taken to 
enter into negotiations, assisted by legal advisors Dickinson Dees, to try to 
reach a settlement with the claimants’ solicitors prior to the hearing.  The 
four firms involved were: Thompsons, representing UNISON members; 
Whittles, representing GMB members; Stefan Cross, solicitors, based in 
Newcastle; and Hetherton’s, solicitors, representing one claimant.   

To date, Memoranda of Understanding had been drafted for Whittles and 
Stefan Cross, who had agreed the settlement.  Hetherton’s case would be 
dealt with individually and UNISON were currently awaiting approval from 
their national headquarters before they could agree the deal.  The contents 
of the Memoranda were confidential, but were based upon a similar offer of 
compensation to that offered to staff in March 2008 and made it clear that 
the Council did not accept any liability and that it had not contravened 
equal pay law.  An analysis of the total equal pay cost and funding was set 
out in paragraph 11 of the report.  This indicated a shortfall of £0.553m in 
available funding.  The first option for funding this shortfall would be to 
apply to Government for a further capitalisation request.  If this was 
unsuccessful, the shortfall would have to be funded from the forecast 
underspend across the Council in 2007/08. 

RESOLVED: (i) That the settlement reached with solicitors, as outlined 
in paragraphs 7 to 10 of the report, be approved.1 

 (ii) That the respective payments to equal pay claimants 
indicated in paragraph 11 be approved, to be funded as 
outlined in paragraph 12.2 

REASON: To reach an acceptable settlement and avoid the tribunal 
being re-convened. 

Action Required  
1. Agree and sign the settlements with solicitors.  
2. Make the payments as agreed in the Memoranda of 
Understanding.   

SA  
SA  

Page 6



S F Galloway, Chair 
[The meeting started at 10.30 am and finished at 11.05 am]. 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 

 

  

 

   

 

Meeting of the Staffing Matters and Urgency 
Committee 

21 May 2008 

 
Report of the Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive 

 

Community Stadium 

Summary 

1. The purpose of this report is to set out the proposed way forward towards 
delivering a Community Stadium for York.  The report also sets out what further 
steps the Council could take in order to help bring about a community stadium 
and also to support York City Football Club in the period of transition from their 
current stadium to the new one. 

 Background 

2. Two stadiums are currently in use and being maintained for the purposes of 
professional sport in York.  Bootham Crescent is the home of York City Football 
Club.  It has a number of drawbacks as a professional sports stadium.  The main 
ones are: - 

- Lack of space 

- Out of date stands and facilities 

- Cost of repairs 

- Very limited catering facilities 

- Poor commercial and executive facilities  

- Problems with the pitch 

The overall ‘package’ does not represent a potentially attractive option for 
customers and is poor in comparison to many other football clubs.  Clubs such as 
Middlesbrough, Doncaster, Hull, Huddersfield and Darlington are all within an 
hour of York and all play in new modern facilities, with average crowds that are 
higher than when they were in their former grounds. 

Huntington stadium is used by York Knights Rugby League Club (and athletics 
clubs/users).  It also has a number of drawbacks as a professional sports 
stadium.   The main ones are: - 

Agenda Item 5Page 9



 

- out of date stands and facilities and lack of stadium ‘feel’ due to open 
ends 

- Temporary / limited catering facilities which produce no income for the 
Knights 

- poor disabled facilities 

- difficulties caused by dual use with athletics 

- relatively poor viewing facilities due to distance from pitch 

- a limited capacity of 3,200, which is occasionally a restriction. 

 

3. Both clubs currently provide significant community related activities.  These 
involve thousands of children and young people each year and range from 
football and rugby coaching and training through a range of other sporting and 
non sporting activities, through education and awareness raising to match 
mascots and watching sport.  These activities could be better carried out with 
purpose provided facilities and with a more modern and attractive stadium. 

4. YCFC has been searching for a site for a new stadium for at least four years 
and has identified some potential options. The funding that YCFC can put into a 
new stadium is limited to a maximum of the value of Bootham Crescent less 
some outstanding liabilities secured against the value of the ground.   York 
Knights have a lease on Huntington stadium, the freehold of which is owned by 
the Council and the leasehold of which is owned by Canon’s who operate 
Waterworld.  The Knights therefore have no asset value that they could 
contribute towards a new stadium. 

5. Whilst the YCFC search for a new site has produced a number of options (see 
confidential Annex 1) there are a number of problems to be overcome.  These 
are principally: - 

- financial 

- planning 

- commercial 

- project management 

In simple terms there is unlikely to be sufficient money from the sale of Bootham 
Crescent to build a new stadium and thus the 8-9 acres of land that is required 
for a new stadium needs to be provided free or at close to agricultural rates on a 
Greenfield site as it would be too expensive to buy a site with other development 
value. 

A new site needs to be capable of getting planning permission, which must 
include consideration of effects on surrounding residential amenity, visual impact, 

Page 10



 

access (including traffic impact), environmental sustainability, safety, possible 
impact on the green belt and other planning  requirements such as being fully 
accessible for the disabled. 

The new stadium needs to be more commercially viable than either of the 
existing ones in terms of catering, executive facilities, 7 day a week use and 
other commercial opportunities. 

The planning, design, funding, programme and project management needed to 
deliver a new stadium is substantial and is beyond the resources of YCFC and 
the Knights. 

It is clear from the above that without input from third parties such as the Council 
and local businesses it is unlikely that the professional sports and clubs in the 
City have the financial or operational capacity to bring about the delivery of the 
vision of a new community stadium for York.  It is also clear that the only 
workable option to meet the core aspirations of both clubs is to combine the 
majority of the asset value of both Bootham Crescent and Huntington stadium 
and use the majority of this to fund a new community stadium.  It is obvious from 
a business point of view that the city will ultimately only need one professional 
stadium.  The Knights are bound to want to relocate to it once it is built so it 
makes every sense to plan from the outset on the basis of having one high 
quality new stadium.   
 
It is a corporate priority to have a new stadium because professional football is 
important to the city and we want to support it and there is a real opportunity at 
the same time to provide much better and more coherent community facilities by 
working in partnership: 
 

i)  around the new stadium itself and/or  
ii) with other established partners in the city  
 

so that there is greater access to better quality facilities for the whole community, 
not just for athletics but potentially for other sport and active leisure activities. 

 

7. Issues To Be Overcome In Order To Finalise A Clear Way Forward For A 
Community Stadium 

1)  Funding For A New Stadium 
  

a) The Football Foundation has provided a £2m loan, which can be 
converted into a grant once a new stadium is underway.  Whilst it is 
a loan, interest of £138,000 per year is payable on it by YCFC and 
this is significantly contributing to annual revenue losses.  The loan 
has been fully utilised to buy out the majority previous interest in 
Boothham Crescent.  Thus in effect the only asset value that can be 
put into a new stadium by YCFC is the value of Bootham Crescent 
less the liabilities secured against it (see confidential Annex 2). 

 
 

Page 11



 

This value is extremely difficult to assess due to the following factors:- 
 

i) The current state of the market.  Housing would be a possible future use 
of Bootham Crescent assuming the existing use could be relocated, 
although there would be other options.  The housing market is in a difficult 
position and several major house builders have said that they would either 
not buy land or will not develop land for the time being.  This restricts the 
market and thus the value. 

 
ii) A planning application for change of use for Bootham Crescent to housing 

is currently registered by the council but will not be determined until a 
replacement facility is available. This application was registered before the 
current level of 50% affordable housing policy was introduced,  the % of 
affordable housing applicable therefore needs to be resolved.  A market 
assessment and formal valuation of the site needs to be undertaken.  For 
the purpose of this report only it is assumed that allowing for the above 
factors and the liabilities secured against the site a prudent valuation of 
the net asset value available for a re-investment in a new stadium is under 
£4m, although it could well be more than this. 

 
b)  Were Huntington stadium no longer required within the community as a 
leisure asset, redevelopment for housing may also be a possible future use. In 
this case the site would suffer from the same housing market issues as 
Bootham Crescent,.  It is a larger site than Bootham Crescent, but considerably 
further from the City Centre.  For the purpose of this report only an asset value 
of £5m is assumed. 
 
2)  The Cost Of A New Stadium 
  
For the purpose of this report it is assumed that only options not including 
purchase of land will be considered.  The cost of a 6,000 capacity stadium 
(which is the minimum to meet league standards), which would not be all 
seated, but would have a substantial number of seats, would be a minimum of 
£6m.  In reality once fees were included, allowances made for inflation in 
building costs, allowance made for a more sustainable and aesthetic design 
(rather than 4 basic stands) it would be necessary to set aside £7.5m for the 
build costs including pitch, floodlighting, changing rooms, executive facilities, 
catering, ticketing facilities, office etc. 
 
In addition to these cost there would be the cost of relocating the athletics 
facilities to another site (see confidential site Annex 1) with suitable spectator 
facilities.  It is estimated that this will cost £1m. 
 
3) Planning Issues 

 
Further work needs to be carried out on the two main feasible sites identified in 
confidential site Annex 1.  Whilst both sites are of sufficient size to 
accommodate the stadium,   they both require a detailed planning development 
assessment before planning suitability can be confirmed, 
 

Page 12



 

4) Commercial Issues 
 

Neither club is currently profitable and indeed YCFC makes substantial loses of 
about £0.25m per year at present.  YCFC’s turnover is about 3-4 times the size 
of York Knights.  It is therefore imperative that a new stadium is designed to 
maximise its use on a commercial basis both during sporting and other events 
and during the rest of the week.  This means such things as having executive 
boxes that can be let out as meeting rooms and fitness facilities that can be 
used by the players and citizens.  Use of space needs to be considered and 
services such as ticketing and crowd maintenance and administration jointly 
run.  It is envisaged that a new stadium would be managed by a professional 
management company with the excess of income earned over expenditure 
incurred shared principally by the two clubs.  Work needs to be undertaken to 
identify which costs (rates, staff, stadium repairs, equipment, etc)  and which 
income (lettings, catering, bars, advertising etc) should be managed by the 
company and how surpluses should be distributed between the clubs. 
 
5) Project Management 
 
In order to coordinate a project to sell the two existing stadiums, relocate 
athletics, resolve planning issues at the two existing sites and the two main 
feasible sites for a new stadium, deal with design, development, contracts, 
building, financial and other issues both project management and planning and 
development expertise will be required over a 3 – 4 year period.  Neither club is 
in a position to supply or fund these, although they do have people who can 
contribute to such a project and YCFC have achieved much already. 
 

 
 The Role Of The Council  

8. So far the Council has fulfilled its normal role with regard to any business, 
developer or interested party seeking to undertake development in the City.  That 
is that it has advised on the planning process, constraints, possible acceptability 
and issues around sites and has been generally responsive to ideas put forward, 
in the main, by YCFC.  The Council has done some limited proactive work and 
some Officers have spent time at meetings and considering options, whilst 
leaving YCFC to try to make progress and realise its vision of a new stadium. 

9.    Given the financial problems of funding a new stadium, the complexities involved, 
the planning issues and the current ongoing revenue losses of YCFC it has 
become clear that unless the Council takes a more proactive role a new 
community stadium may well not come to fruition. 

 
10.   The steps that the Council can take depend upon the parameters and criteria that 

it wishes to set itself and its legal and financial constraints.  As a starting point the 
following proposals are based upon the premises that no money that has come 
direct from City of York Council Tax payers be used to support a new community 
stadium.    

 

Page 13



 

Option 1 

11. It is clear from the preceding paragraph that unless the Council sells Huntington 
stadium and uses the majority of the proceeds (along with these from Bootham 
Crescent) to fund a community stadium to be used by both the Knights and 
YCFC, and relocate the athletic users to a new track with appropriate viewing 
facilities, then a new stadium cannot realistically be considered.  The Council is 
recommended to make this commitment.  In doing so it needs to consider that 
these are other Council service related calls on Council capital as set out in the 
capital programme report to full Council in March.  Against that it is questionable 
to what extent the value of Huntington could be realised in any other way as both 
Rugby and athletics would expect relocation and it is possible that depending on 
market values some surplus asset value may be generated which could be used 
for other Council facilities such as school, leisure, social services etc.  The 
provision of a new stadium is also one of the Councils corporate imperatives in its 
corporate strategy and as such has some priority for the use of council funds. 

12. Apart from achieving community, leisure and sporting objectives by contributing 
to the provision of a new stadium (which would almost certainly be Trust, 
Community or Council owned) the Council would, if change of use through the 
planning system to housing was deemed appropriate, also ensure through this 
project that its housing objectives and needs for more affordable options and 
more private housing were furthered as over 200 homes could be built on the two 
sites. 

Option 2 

13. The Council has recently been notified that it will receive £690k from the 
Business Growth Incentive Scheme.  This scheme involves Central Government 
using excess business rates to reward Councils where business growth in excess 
of Government targets has taken place.  This money is currently uncommitted 
and The Council could choose to commit about £200k to fund a project manager 
for the whole project set out in this report.  This would fund 3-4 years work of an 
experienced project manager who could work for a steering group consisting of 
the Council, the Clubs and perhaps the landowner of the chosen site. 
 
Option 3 

14. The Council has recently been investigating the possibility of gaining external 
funding to support the planning and development work on major city 
developments such as York Central/North West, Coppergate etc.  The new 
stadium could be included as a recognised development for the City and 
dedicated officer time likely to be to a value of £100 - £150k could be directed to 
the Community Stadium project, funded through this external bid. 

 
Option 4 
 

15. In order for the council to make a commitment to the new stadium and to relieve 
some of the current pressure on YCFC the Council could consider repaying the 
£2m loan to the Football Foundation and securing this against Bootham 
Crescent. This would be attractive because the current loan is at 6.9% interest 

Page 14



 

and the Council can borrow at around 4.6%- 4.8% currently. In addition the 
council could allow YCFC to roll up the interest in the period prior to the move to 
the new stadium, thus relieving the club of a cost of £138k per year. As such a 
loan would be made by the council at cost, but at below commercial rates it 
would require the council to note this in its accounts.  The drawbacks to this 
option are that the council could only realistically recover its loan through the 
successful completion of this whole project and thus the council is in a real 
financial way tied in to its success. More to be added here 

 

 Implications 

16. Financial  - The proposals in this report seek to utilise resources from existing 
council assets and from resources generated from central government due to 
success in generating business growth in York and due to the government 
wishing to support future planned development in the city.  In taking  the 
decisions set out in the recommendations to this report members need to 
consider the overall benefits in terms of sport, leisure, housing and community 
engagement that should accrue against the costs and risks involved. 

   Human Resources (HR) - there are no implications 

Equalities -  there are no implications  

Legal  

The legal issues arising in connection with this report are primarily twofold, firstly 
there are the issues arising from the transactions associated with the various 
options such as making the loan to the football club, and secondly there are the 
constitutional considerations of which parts of the decision making apparatus at 
York Council can make the required decisions. 

Turning to the first of those matters, at this stage of the project and with the 
information available so far, I must qualify these legal implications by noting that 
they are limited to the information available. Further legal advice will be 
necessary as part of the ongoing process of developing proposals concerning 
CYC’s involvement in the provision of a football stadium. In particular I would 
highlight that it is not yet established as to where the ownership of any 
‘community stadium’ would reside i.e. the council, a trust vehicle or the 
community. 

In essence what is proposed is that CYC provides support, in various ways 
including officer time and preferential rate loan facility, to at least one external 
organisation, that being the York City Football Club. I am presuming that this is a 
private limited company, although the status of the company is not clear from the 
report.  What is clear is that it is wholly autonomous to the council and in private 
ownership. In the circumstances the council will need to seek advice as to a 
number of matters including whether the state aid provisions permit the proposed 
transactions; whether the council is able to identify a statutory power under which 
it can provide this assistance. I note that the well-being powers are likely to be 

Page 15



 

relevant in this regard but a conclusive opinion may only be provided when there 
is greater clarity as to the final model. 

I would also note that it is suggested that the ‘community stadium’ would be 
managed by a professional management company with some form of profit share 
to the clubs themselves.  Detailed legal advice will be required to ensure that the 
use of the stadium is regulated in order to ensure that the community objectives 
can be achieved in addition to the objectives of the companies behind the two 
clubs. Complex contractual provisions will need to be in place in order to ensure 
appropriate risk transfer. 

Turning to the question of decision-making I would make the following 
observations as to the appropriate place for the decisions to be taken:- 

A decision to sell property is an Executive decision. 
A decision to allocate the funds from a sale to a particular project is a council 
function, subject to any relevant financial rules. 
The allocation of LABGI funds is likely to be a council function unless the council 
has provided that this money is allocated, as part of the budget process, for the 
Executive to utilise as it chooses. 
The deployment of officers  to support the project is an Executive decision. 
Taking over the loan is complex and would, in my view require both Executive  
and Council approval due to it impacting upon the budget and policy framework 
in future budget periods. 
 
Crime and Disorder - there are no implications 

Information Technology (IT) - there are no implications 

Property  - Property implications are not, at this stage, significant and are dealt 
with in the body of this report. 

Other – there are no other implications 

17.   Risk Management – There are a number of risks involved in a project of this 
nature. These include that 

- land values may vary 
- planning difficulties may be encountered 
- build costs may vary 
- design issues may occur 
- difficulties may be encountered in working in partnership 
- the scope, funding and workings of stadium management need to be 

formalised 
- the revenue position of YCFC is precarious 

 
The proposals in this report for the Council to contribute to a new community 
stadium by way of asset value and practical funded project management and 
planning and development support are ways of reducing the risks to this project. 
The separate proposals for the Council to repay the Football Foundation loan and 
secure this against Bootham Crescent are aimed at improving the football clubs 
short-term revenue position.   

Page 16



 

A further risk that exists is that the Council must not breach state aid rules in the 
support that it is offering to this project. Further specialist advice will be needed 
on this issue.  
 

 Recommendations 

Members are asked to agree the following recommendations 

18. The sale of Huntington Stadium and the commitment of sufficient resources 
generated from that sale, alongside those from the sale of Bootham Crescent to 
fund a Community Stadium for York.  

Reason: In order to rationalise and improve the facilities for professional sport in 
the City of York Council 

19. That the first £1m of the sale value of Huntington stadium be utilised to relocate 
the athletics facilities at the stadium to another site with suitable viewing facilities 

Reason: To improve the athletics facilities currently available 

20. That £200k of the Council’s LABGI reward money be allocated to fund 
programme management to support the development of and generation of funds 
for a new Community Stadium 

Reason: In order to further the Council’s stated objective of ensuring the 
provision of a new community stadium for York 

21. That dedicated Council planning and development officer time to the value of 
£100k - £150k be committed to work in support of the sales of the existing stadia 
and the provision of the new Community Stadium and the new athletics facility. 
This to be funded from the expected external funding. Reason: In order to further  
the Council’s stated objective of ensuring the provision of a new community 
stadium for York 

22. That the Council takes over the £2m football foundation loan from YCFC and 
repays it securing it against Bootham Crescent.  This to be subject to approval 
from YCFC and the football foundation and subject to the football foundation 
guaranteeing the £2m will be paid as a grant during the construction of the new 
community stadium. 

Reason: In order for the council to make a financial commitment to the project 
and to support YCFC in the lead up to a new stadium being built. 

Reason for Urgency : The football club faces both deadlines from the Football 
Foundation and current financial pressures and thus a decision is needed before 
the next full council meeting at the end of June 2008  

 

 

 

Page 17



 

Contact Details 

 
Author:  Simon Wiles 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 

Simon Wiles – Director of Resources 

Report 
Approved � 

Date 20 May 2008 

 

Director of Resources 
Tel: 551100 

    
 
Specialist Implications Officer(s)   
Financial – Simon Wiles                             Legal – Quentin Baker 
Director of Resources                               Head of Legal & Democratic Services                                                
Tel 551100                                                Tel 551004 
 
 

All � 
Wards Affected:  List wards or tick box to indicate all 

 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Background Papers: 
 
 

Annexes 

 
Annex 1. - Confidential – Community Stadium Site Options and Issues 
 
Annex 2. - Confidential  - Financial Annex  

Page 18



Page 19
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 23
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	
	3 Minutes
	5 Community Stadium
	Confidential Annex 1
	Confidential Financial Annex 2


